### Varazdin Development and Entrepreneurship Agency and University North in cooperation with:

CPES – Universidade Lusofona
CICPRIS – Universidade Lusofona

Fundacao para a Ciencia e a Tecnologia (FCT) Faculty of Management University of Warsaw

Faculty of Law, Economics and Social Sciences Sale - Mohammed V University in Rabat Polytechnic of Medimurje in Cakovec



### **Economic and Social Development**

62nd International Scientific Conference on Economic and Social Development

### **Book of Abstracts**

### Editors:

Ana Lorga da Silva, Tomislav Rados, Olga V. Kaurova















### Varazdin Development and Entrepreneurship Agency and University North

in cooperation with:

CPES – Universidade Lusofona
CICPRIS – Universidade Lusofona
Fundacao para a Ciencia e a Tecnologia (FCT)
Faculty of Management University of Warsaw
Faculty of Law, Economics and Social Sciences Sale - Mohammed V University in Rabat
Polytechnic of Medimurie in Cakovec

### **Editors:**

Ana Lorga da Silva, Universidade Lusofona de Humanidades e Tecnologias, Portugal Tomislav Rados, Croatian Chamber of Economy, Croatia Olga V. Kaurova, Russian University of Cooperation, Russian Federation

### **Economic and Social Development**

62nd International Scientific Conference on Economic and Social Development

### **Book of Abstracts**

This esd Conference is part of the project "Centar održivog razvoja"/"Center of sustainable development", co-financed by the European Union from the European regional development fund and implemented within Operational Programme Competitiveness and Cohesion 2014 – 2020 of the Republic of Croatia, based on the call "Investing in Organizational Reform and Infrastructure in the Research, Development and Innovation Sector".

Editors ■ Ana Lorga da Silva, Tomislav Rados, Olga V. Kaurova

Scientific Committee / Programski Odbor Marijan Cingula (President), University of Zagreb, Croatia: Ana Lorga da Silva (Vice-President), Universidade Lusofona de Humanidades e Tecnologias, Portugal; Sannur Aliyev, Azerbaijan State University of Economics, Azerbaijan; Ayuba A. Aminu, University of Maiduguri, Nigeria; Anona Armstrong, Victoria University, Australia; Gouri Sankar Bandyopadhyay, The University of Burdwan, Rajbati Bardhaman, India; Haimanti Banerji, Indian Institute of Technology, Kharagpur, India; Victor Beker, University of Buenos Aires, Argentina; Asmae Benthami, Mohammed V University, Morocco; Alla Bobyleva, The Lomonosov Moscow State University, Russia; Leonid K. Bobrov, State University of Economics and Management, Novosibirsk, Russia; Rado Bohinc, University of Ljubljana, Slovenia; Adnan Celik, Selcuk University, Konya, Turkey: Angelo Maia Cister, Federal University of Rio de Janeiro, Brasil: Mirela Cristea, University of Crajova, Romania: Taoufik Dagbri. Mohammed V University, Morocco; Oguz Demir, Istanbul Commerce University, Turkey; T.S. Devaraja, University of Mysore, India; Onur Dogan, Dokuz Eylul University, Turkey; Darko Dukic, University of Osijek, Croatia; Gordana Dukic, University of Osijek, Croatia; Alba Dumi, Vlora University, Vlore, Albania; Galina Pavlovna Gagarinskaya, Samara State University, Russia; Mirjana Gligoric, Faculty of Economics - Belgrade University, Serbia; Maria Jose Angelico Goncalves, Porto Accounting and Business School - P.Porto, Portugal; Mehmet Emre Gorgulu, Afyon Kocatepe University, Turkey; Klodiana Gorica, University of Tirana, Albania; Aleksandra Grobelna, Gdynia Maritime University, Poland; Liudmila Guzikova, Peter the Great Saint-Petersburg Polytechnic University, Russia; Anica Hunjet, University North, Koprivnica, Croatia; Khalid Hammes, Mohammed V University, Morocco; Oxana Ivanova, Ulyanovsk State University, Ulyanovsk, Russia; Irena Jankovic, Faculty of Economics, Belgrade University, Serbia; Myrl Jones, Radford University, USA; Hacer Simay Karaalp, Pamukkale University, urkey; Dafna Kariv, The College of Management Academic Studies, Rishon Le Zion, Israel; Hilal Yildirir Keser, Uludag University, Bursa, Turkey; Sophia Khalimova, Institute of Economics and Industrial Engineering of Siberian Branch of Russian Academy of Science, Novosibirsk, Russia; Marina Klacmer Calopa, University of Zagreb, Croatia; Igor Klopotan, Medjimursko Veleuciliste u Cakovcu, Croatia; Vladimir Kovsca, University of Zagreb, Croatia; Goran Kozina, University North, Koprivnica, Croatia; Dzenan Kulovic, University of Zenica, Bosnia and Herzegovina; Robert Lewis, Les Roches Gruyere University of Applied Sciences, Bulle, Switzerland; Ladislav Lukas, Univ. of West Bohemia, Faculty of Economics, Czech Republic; Mustapha Machrafi, Mohammed V University, Morocco; Joao Jose Lourenco Marques, University of Aveiro, Portugal; Pascal Marty, University of La Rochelle, France; Vaidotas Matutis, Vilnius University, Lithuania; Daniel Francois Meyer, North West University, South Africa; Marin Milkovic, University North, Koprivnica, Croatia; Abdelhamid Nechad, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Morocco; Gratiela Georgiana Noja, West University of Timisoara, Romania; Zsuzsanna Novak, Corvinus University of Budapest, Hungary; Tomasz Ochinowski, University of Warsaw, Poland; Barbara Herceg Paksic, University of Osijek, Croatia; Vera Palea, Universita degli Studi di Torino, Italy; Dusko Pavlovic, Libertas International University, Zagreb, Croatia; Igor Pihir, University of Zagreb, Croatia; Dmitri Pletnev, Chelyabinsk State University, Russian Federation; Miroslaw Przygoda, University of Warsaw, Poland; Karlis Purmalis, University of Latvia, Latvia; Nicholas Recker, Metropolitan State University of Denver, USA; Kerry Redican, Virginia Tech, Blacksburg, USA; Humberto Ribeiro, University of Aveiro, Portugal; Robert Rybnicek, University of Graz, Austria; Elzbieta Szymanska, Bialystok University of Technology, Poland; Katarzyna Szymanska, The State Higher School of Vocational Education in Ciechanow, Poland; Ilaria Tutore, University of Naples Parthenope, Italy; Sandra Raquel Alves, Polytechnic of Leiria, Portugal; Joanna Stawska, University of Lodz, Poland; Ilko Vrankic, University of Zagreb, Croatia; Stanislaw Walukiewicz, Bialystok University of Technology, Poland; Thomas Will, Agnes Scott College, USA; Li Yongqiang, Victoria University, Australia; Peter Zabielskis, University of Macau, China; Silvija Zeman, Medjimursko Veleuciliste u Cakovcu, Croatia; Tao Zeng, Wilfrid Laurier University, Waterloo, Canada; Snezana Zivkovic, University of Nis, Serbia; Antonio Augusto Costa, Universidade Lusofona de Humanidades e Tecnologias, Portugal; Carlos Capelo, Universidade Lusofona de Humanidades e Tecnologia, Portugal; Maria Elisabete Pinto da Costa, Universidade Lusofona do Porto, Portugal; Maria do Rosario dos Anjos, Universidade Lusofona do Porto, Portugal.

Review Committee / Recenzentski Odbor ■ Marina Klacmer Calopa (President); Ana Aleksic; Sandra Raquel Alves; Ayuba Aminu; Mihovil Andjelinovic; Josip Americ; Lidija Bagaric; Tomislav Bakovic; Sanja Blazevic; Leonid Bobrov, Ruzica Brecic; Anita Ceh Casni; Iryna Chernysh; Mirela Cristea; Oguz Demir; Stjepan Dvorski; Robert Fabac; Ivica Filipovic; Sinisa Franjic; Fran Galetic; Mirjana Gligoric; Tomislav Globan; Anita Goltnik Urnaut; Tomislav Herceg; Irena Jankovic; Emina Jerkovic; Dafna Kariv; Oliver Kesar; Hilal Yildirir Keser; Martina Dragija Kostic; Tatjana Kovac; Vladimir Kovsca; Angelo Maia Cister; Katarina Marosevic; Vaidotas Matutis; Marjana Merkac Skok; Daniel Francois Meyer; Natanya Meyer; Josip Mikulic; Ljubica Milanovic Glavan; Guenter Mueller; Ivana Nacinovic Braje; Zlatko Nedelko; Gratiela Georgiana Noja; Zsuzsanna Novak; Alka Obadic; Claudia Ogrean; Igor Pihir; Najla Podrug; Vojko Potocan; Dinko Primorac; Zeljka Primorac; Sanda Renko; Humberto Ribeiro; Vlasta Roska; Souhaila Said; Armando Javier Sanchez Diaz; Tomislav Sekur; Lorena Skuflic; Mirko Smoljic; Petar Soric; Mario Spremic; Matjaz Stor; Tomasz Studzieniecki; Lejla Tijanic; Daniel Tomic; Boris Tusek; Rebeka Daniela Vlahov; Ilko Vrankic; Thomas Will; Zoran Wittine; Tao Zeng; Grzegorz Zimon; Snezana Zivkovic; Berislav Zmuk; Ana Lorga da Silva; Antonio Augusto Costa; Carlos Capelo; Artur Parreira.

Organizing Committee / Organizacijski Odbor ■ Ana Lorga da Silva (President); Domagoj Cingula (Vice - President); Fernando Borges; Catia Rosario; Humberto Ribeiro; Sandra Raquel Alves; Djani Bunja; Marina Klacmer Calopa; Spomenko Kesina; Erlino Koscak; Tomasz Ochinowski; Miroslaw Przygoda; Michael Stefulj; Rebeka Danijela Vlahov; Sime Vucetic.

Publishing Editors ■ Spomenko Kesina, Mario Vrazic, Domagoj Cingula

Publisher ■ Design ■ Print ■ Varazdin Development and Entrepreneurship Agency, Varazdin, Croatia / University North, Koprivnica, Croatia / Study Centre for European Policy Studies (CEPS), Lisbon, Portugal / Centre for Research in Political Science, International Relations and Security (CICPRIS), Lisbon, Portugal / Fundacao para a Ciencia e a Tecnologia (FCT), Lisbon, Portugal / Faculty of Management University of Warsaw, Warsaw, Poland / Faculty of Law, Economics and Social Sciences Sale - Mohammed V University in Rabat, Morocco / Polytechnic of Medimurje in Cakovec, Cakovec, Croatia

**Printing** ■ Online Edition

#### ISSN 1849-7543

The Book is open access and double-blind peer reviewed.

Our past Books are indexed and abstracted by ProQuest, EconBIZ, CPCI (Web of Science) and EconLit databases and available for download in a PDF format from the Economic and Social Development Conference website: http://www.esd-conference.com

© 2020 Varazdin Development and Entrepreneurship Agency, Varazdin, Croatia; University North, Koprivnica, Croatia; Study Centre for European Policy Studies (CEPS), Lisbon, Portugal; Centre for Research in Political Science, International Relations and Security (CICPRIS), Lisbon, Portugal; Fundacao para a Ciencia e a Tecnologia (FCT), Lisbon, Portugal; Faculty of Management University of Warsaw, Warsaw, Poland; Faculty of Law, Economics and Social Sciences Sale - Mohammed V University in Rabat, Morocco; Polytechnic of Medimurje in Cakovec, Cakovec, Croatia. All rights reserved. Authors are responsible for the linguistic and technical accuracy of their contributions. Authors keep their copyrights for further publishing.

### **CONTENTS**

RISK TAKING, EXPERIENCE, AND RETIREMENT SAVINGS 1 Vladimir Balaz
ADAPTABILITY OF BULGARIAN EDUCATION SYSTEM TO THE OCCURRED PANDEMIC SITUATION2
Venelin Terziev, Olga Andreeva
DIGITAL CHALLENGES FOR SMES ORGANISATIONS IN HUMAN CAPITAL INVESTMENTS AND CHANGE3
Boris Jevtic, Nebojsa Zakic, Jovanka Popovic, Goran Coric, Goran Kvrgic
MARKETPLACE VS ONLINE SHOP5 Andzela Veselova
DIGITIZATION IN RECRUITMENT6
Tatiana Masarova, Monika Gullerova
INFLUENCER IMPACT ON ENGAGEMENT, EXPECTED VALUE, AND PURCHASE INTENTION: A STUDY AMONG CROATIAN CUSTOMERS
Aleksandra Osivnik, Damir Dobrinic, Iva Gregurec
EXPLORING MIGRATION FLOWS WITH INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS OF SLOVAKIA8
Martina Chrancokova, Dusana Dokupilova
DEVELOPING PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCIES IN THE DIGITAL ECONOMY9
Marina Panyavina, Zinaida Rodionova, Natalia Ermashkevich
WHAT FACTORS AFFECT CUSTOMER SATISFACTION WITH POSTAL SERVICES?11
Peter Jucha, Katarina Stalmachova, Maria Zilincikova, Simona Jaculjakova Tatiana Corejova
EVOLUTION OF ECONOMIC INCENTIVES AND FUNCTIONAL CONSTRAINTS IN THE PROCESS OF COMPANY GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT
Ilya Maximov, Olga Kovtun, Marina Ivanenko

PATH OF A READING PROJECT IN COLLABORATIVE WORK BETWEEN SCHOOL AND FAMILY
Maria Nazare Coimbra, Alcina Manuela de Oliveira Martins, Ligia Vilarica Jose Antonio Oliveira
ON THE USE OF NEURAL NETWORKS FOR STOCK PRICE FORECASTING
MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS AND ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE: USERS' PERCEPTION OF HEALTHCARE UNITS
Catarina Santos Ferreira, Sandra Raquel Alves, Humberto Ribeiro
CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT AS A TOOL FOR PREVENTION TO ORIGIN OF CRISIS SITUATIONS AND INCREASING THE RESILIENCE OF THE ENTERPRISE 19 Katarina Buganova, Katarina Holla, Erika Moskova
INCREASING RESILIENCE OF ENERGY SECTOR TO ADVERSE EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE
HUMAN ERRORS AS A SOURCE OF PERSONNEL RISK IN THE ENTERPRISE ENVIRONMENT
REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF PORTUGAL: WHICH ARE THE REGIONS OF PORTUGAL WITH THE HIGHEST LEVEL OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND WHAT IS THE INFLUENCE OF SOCIAL AND DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS IN THIS DEVELOPMENT?
THE GLOBALIZATION OF WOMEN'S PROTESTS: THE CASE OF THE WORLD MARCH OF WOMEN
IMPACT INVESTMENT AS A FORMULA FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT IN BHUTAN

MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AS POWER DEVICES IN HIGHER EDUCATION27
Claudia Maria Huber
DETERMINATION OF THE LEVEL OF RESILIENCE OF A CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT - CASE STUDY 28 Eva Sventekova, Maria Luskova, Michal Hulka
PERCEPTION OF HUMAN RESOURCES ON THE SKILLS REQUIRED IN THE FOUR AND FIVE STAR HOTELS IN THE
HISTORIC CENTRE OF PORTO29 Carla Magalhaes, Isabel Andres Marques
A PHENOMENON OF DIALOGISM BETWEEN THE WESTERN AND THE ORIENTAL SCIENCE
BENEFITS AND RISKS OF JOINING EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AND MONETARY UNION: CROATIAN PERSPECTIVE
SITUATIONAL PRICING: THE ROLE OF WINE CONSUMPTION OCCASION ON PRICE DECISION
CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK OF TERMS CONCERNING OVERSPENDING
Timea Vastag, Boglarka Eisingerne Balassa
CURRICULAR ARTICULATION IN ENGLISH TEACHING BETWEEN THE 1ST AND 2ND BASIC EDUCATION CYCLES: PERCEPTIONS OF TEACHERS
SCHOOL MEDIATION OFFICES: PORTUGUESE EXPERIENCE 37 Elisabete Pinto da Costa, Rejane Aparecida de Carvalho
INFLUENCE OF ACTIVE COMMUNICATION ON CRISIS MANAGEMENT
Tina Kezman, Ana Globocnik Zunac, Igor Klopotan

KNOWLEDGE SHARING AND KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER IN BUSINESS NETWORKS39 Alina Czapla
USER ORIENTATION AS A RESOURCE TO CREATE AN EFFECIENT SCORECARD
ADOPTING BEST PRACTICES TO IMPROVE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE MANAGEMENT
INCREASING THE RESILIENCE OF SMALL AND MEDIUM-SIZED ENTERPRISES WITH THE APPLICATION OF PROJECT MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES WITH REGARD TO RISK MANAGEMENT
Katarina Buganova, Jana Simickova  THE ROLE OF ENFORCEMENT MECHANISMS ON IFRS IMPLEMENTATION: PERCEPTIONS FROM TAX OFFICIALS 44 Ana Paula Silva, Alexandra Fontes, Humberto Ribeiro, Sandra Raquel Alves
CLUSTER ORGANIZATION: WE DO NOT KNOW WHERE WE PLAY45 Piroska Hoffmann, Zoltan Baracskai
RE-READING R.D. KAPLAN'S COMING ANARCHY: NEO-MALTHUSIANISM AND THE DEFENSIVE GEOPOLITICAL DISCOURSE IN THE ELECTION PROGRAMS OF THE AFD AND THE LEGA
MANAGERIAL CHALLENGES DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON THE EXAMPLE OF THE CROATIA AIRLINES GROUP49
Martina Sopta, Jure Mihalj
THE IMPACT OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT ON THE SMES RESILIENCY, ADAPTABILITY & SUSTAINABILITY IN A CRISIS50
Goran Kvrgic, Jovanka Popovic, Goran Coric

BALANCED SCORECARD – ANALYSIS OF THEORETICAL APPLIED SOLUTION	
Venelin Terziev, Marin Georgiev, Olga Andreeva	
TOURIST SATISFACTION WITH THE QUALITY OF SERVICES: THE CASE STUDY OF THE FAMILY HOTEI MAKARSKA RIVIERA	ON THE
Marija Jurcevic, Ivana Divic	
THE SCALE OF INTERNAL FUNDING	54
Martina Sopia	

# RISK TAKING, EXPERIENCE, AND RETIREMENT SAVINGS

### Vladimir Balaz

Institute for Forecasting, Centre of Social and Psychological Sciences, Slovak Academy of Sciences, Šancová 56, 813 64 Bratislava, Slovak Republic vbalaz@yahoo.com

### **ABSTRACT**

This research analysed a unique large-scale sample of Slovak retail investors. The main aim of the research was to explore the determinants of investment choices in building retirement savings. In the long term, risky assets generate substantially higher returns than do riskless ones. For the vast majority of retail investors the saving structure was inadequate for the longterm accumulation of pension assets. Shares of risky assets out of total assets were quite low. The research focused on three determinants of investment choices: (1) sociodemographic variables, (2) investors' attitudes towards financial and general risks, and (3) investment competences. The sociodemographic variables (age, gender, education, and number of financially dependent family members) were statistically significant, but their explanation power was rather low in explaining the saving structure. The investment horizon was the only sociodemographic variable with a medium-high association with the structure of retirement savings. Attitudes towards financial and general risks had a high impact on the structure of retirement savings. Perceived investment expertise was well correlated with the actual structure of retirement savings. The higher the perceived expertise and tolerance of financial risks, the higher the share of risky assets out of total assets.

Keywords: Risk taking, investment experience, retirement savings

### ADAPTABILITY OF BULGARIAN EDUCATION SYSTEM TO THE OCCURRED PANDEMIC SITUATION

### Venelin Terziev

Georgi Rakovski Military Academy, Sofia, Bulgaria University of Rousse, Rousse, Bulgaria Kaneff University Hospital, Rousse, Bulgaria Russian Academy of Natural History, Moscow, Russia terziev@skmat.com

### Olga Andreeva

Rostov State University of Economics, Rostov-on-Don, Russia olvandr@ya.ru

### **ABSTRACT**

This study represents an attempt to briefly analyse the labour market situation in Bulgaria during the pandemic crisis and to find a solution to new challenges our education system shall face. Through changes in the educational environment the authors tried to formulate and define teaching methods, organization and management of the values changing process, creation of new culture of the school community, emphasis on the project-based educational process, increase in students` learning motivation through experience, development of key competencies so that learners can meet the requirements of the dynamic labour market – the ability to independently gain knowledge and planning skills. **Keywords:** Education, Unemployed people, Crisis situation, Social policy

### DIGITAL CHALLENGES FOR SMES ORGANISATIONS IN HUMAN CAPITAL INVESTMENTS AND CHANGE

### **Boris Jevtic**

Computing Faculty, Belgrade, Knez Mihajlova 10, Belgrade, University Union, Belgrade, Serbia boris.jevtic10@gmail.com

### Nebojsa Zakic

Faculty of Entrepreneurial Business and Real Estate
Management, Belgrade,
Cara Dusana 62-64, Belgrade, Serbia
University Union- Nikola Tesla, Belgrade, Serbia
nebojsa.z@fpb.edu.rs

### Jovanka Popovic

Faculty of Management, Njegoseva 1a, 21205 Sremski Karlovci, University Union - Nikola Tesla, Belgrade, Serbia jovanka.popovic@famns.edu.rs

### Goran Coric

Faculty of Business Economics, University Singidunum, Deligradska 26, 11000 Belgrade, Serbia gcoric@outlook.com

### Goran Kvrgic

Faculty of Management, Njegoševa 1a, 21205 Sremski Karlovci, University Union - Nikola Tesla, Belgrade, Serbia goran.kvrgic@famns.edu.rs

### **ABSTRACT**

As the human resource has been considered as tactical, cultural and human capital, worth of employees, and an organizational asset, its accounting and disclosure aspects are becoming significant for the organizational success. The corporations in the developed countries have usually disclosed human resource

information in a formal pattern in their annual report, but in the developing countries like Western Balkans, Human Resource disclosure aspect is rather new concept. The motivation for this research is an attempt to investigate the investments in HR in textile companies in Serbia as a Western Balkan country and to the relationship between company evaluate business performances and HRD. This paper recognizes the improvement of skills and knowledge of HR in textile industry as an asset for business success, according to new digital technology and competing imperative, what is the main hypothesis of the paper. For the purpose of the research data were collected by taking interviews and filling up questionnaires from 161 private, independent enterprises and entrepreneurs from the textile industry sector out of a total of 203 companies as a sample in 2019. The methods used are statistical, mathematical, descriptive linear correlation and analysis. In relation to the impact of the financial sources used by companies into HR development of their digital skills and knowledge improvement, key findings of the research showed that: 39 % believe that this investment helped them to increase their business revenues, 30% to sustain, and 31% of the total number of respondents believe that their business revenues have been reduced, in spite of human resource investments.

The paper contributes to enterprise finance and HR challenges adjustments in TCL industries digitalisation in the new and future member states of EU.

**Keywords:** Business Revenues, Digital skills, Enterprise Finance, Human resource development, ICT Technologies, SMEs, Textile Industries.

### MARKETPLACE VS ONLINE SHOP

### Andzela Veselova

University of Latvia, Riga. Aspazijas blv. 5., Latvia andzela. veselova@lu.lv

### **ABSTRACT**

At the dawn of the Internet development, the online shops "existed" only in their own sites, but lately the large online platforms as Marketplace have become particularly popular. The main difference between marketplace (online platforms) and online shop is following: marketplace sells goods and services to many people meanwhile in case of online shop the seller is the company that owns the shop, marketplace is the intermediary between the buyer and the seller, and receives commission (normally 10-20% of the price) as well benefits financially from advertising. In contradistinction to an online shop, marketplace does not sell anything: it provides the space for the owners of online shops. The contracts between marketplace and the owners of shops can prescribe additional deductions for marketplace. At the same time, marketplace can host not only shops, but also direct suppliers of goods. Current marketplace can provide the space for companies offering different services: one can find the right service in the right city or even neighbourhood only browsing marketplace site. The aim of the research is to compare the marketplace and online shop, basing on theoretical aspects, discover main differences and make conclusions. The tasks: to give advantages and disadvantages of marketplace based on theoretical aspects, make conclusions. Will be used the monographic method.

Keywords: Europe, marketplace, onlines hops, platform

### DIGITIZATION IN RECRUITMENT

### Tatiana Masarova

Alexander Dubcek University in Trencin, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia tatiana.masarova@tnuni.sk

### Monika Gullerova

Alexander Dubcek University in Trencin, Študentská 2, 911 50 Trenčín, Slovakia monika.gullerova@tnuni.sk

### **ABSTRACT**

The labor market of the Slovak Republic has changed dramatically. To remain competitive, organizations have to respond adequately. The paper addresses the current issue of new recruitment techniques. Traditional recruitment methods are no longer enough, new recruitment techniques are needed. The paper attempts to identify practices in the process of employees recruitment with a closer look at the tools in the process and recruitment process optimization. The paper contains a literature review, a null and an alternative hypothesis and a description of the methods used in the practical part, results, recommendations and conclusions. study is focused on detecting the presence of social media in the recruitment process. The study also tests the hypothesis whether there is dependence between the number of regular LinkedIn users and job categories. In the paper, both qualitative and quantitative research was carried out. The questionnaire survey took place in February 2019, the study uses a sample of 85 respondents. A semistructured interview was conducted with the head of Human Resources department. Results confirmed the relevance of social media in the recruitment process. Using the chi-square test, a statistically significant relationship was confirmed between the LinkedIn active use and job categories. The practical value of the obtained results is the knowledge on how to make the recruitment process more effective in the current labor market.

**Keywords:** job categories, LinkedIn, organization, recruitment process, social media

### INFLUENCER IMPACT ON ENGAGEMENT, EXPECTED VALUE, AND PURCHASE INTENTION: A STUDY AMONG CROATIAN CUSTOMERS

### Aleksandra Osivnik

Faculty of organization and informatics, University of Zagreb, Varaždin, Pavlinska 2, Croatia aosivnik@foi.hr

### **Damir Dobrinic**

Faculty of organization and informatics, University of Zagreb, Varaždin, Pavlinska 2, Croatia damir.dobrinic@foi.unizg.hr

### Iva Gregurec

Faculty of organization and informatics, University of Zagreb, Varaždin, Pavlinska 2, Croatia iva.gregurec@foi.unizg.hr

### **ABSTRACT**

This paper aims to investigate A) the impact of influencers on followers' brand engagement in self-concept, expected brand value, and intent to purchase, B) the impact of brand engagement in self-concept on expected brand value and intent to purchase, and C) the impact of followers expected brand value on intent to purchase. Based on this, a conceptual research model was developed, and hypotheses were formed, which were tested using the software package SPSS AMOS 26 by the structural equation modelling method. The research was conducted through the social network Facebook, and 488 correctly completed survey questionnaires were collected. The empirical research results show a positive impact of influencers on the followers' brand engagement in self-concept, the brand's expected value, and the intent to purchase. On the other hand, brand engagement in selfconcept has no impact on the brand's followers' expected value. Also, followers' brand engagement in the brand's self-concept and expected value does not affect the followers' intention to purchase. In addition to gaining new insights into customer behavior concerning influencing their purchasing decisions, the results will contribute to marketing and sales professionals in shaping customer performance strategies.

**Keywords:** influencers, followers, brand, promotion, influence marketing expected value

\*\*\*\*\*

# EXPLORING MIGRATION FLOWS WITH INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS OF SLOVAKIA

### Martina Chrancokova

Institute for Forecasting,
Centre of Social and Psychological Sciences, Slovakia
Faculty of National Economy of the University of Economics in
Bartislava, Slovakia
martina.chranckova@gmail.com;
martina.chrancokova@euba.sk

### **Dusana Dokupilova**

Institute for Forecasting, Centre of Social and Psychological Sciences, Slovakia Dusana.dokupilova@savba.sk

### **ABSTRACT**

In this article we will look at legal migration or mobility associated with Slovakia. Mobility or relocation of individuals is not measured between countries within the EU. This is due to the Schengen Agreement, which has been adopted by all European Union (EU) countries. However, institutions such as Eurostat and the OECD conduct statistical surveys on student migration. Therefore, in this article we looked at the flows of Slovak students studying abroad and analysed their favourite destinations and types of study. Additionally, we were interested in the flows of

foreign students heading to Slovakia. In the analysis, we compared the degrees that these young people plan to pursue abroad or in Slovakia. The article presents a quantitative analysis of human capital flows of students to and from Slovakia – brain gain and brain drain.

**Keywords:** Emigration of Slovak students, Immigration of foreign students to Slovakia, Brain drain, Brain gain

\*\*\*\*\*

# DEVELOPING PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCIES IN THE DIGITAL ECONOMY

### Marina Panyavina

Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Russian Federation m.l.panyavina@edu.nsuem.ru

### Zinaida Rodionova

Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Russian Federation 7.v.rodionova@edu.nsuem.ru

### Natalia Ermashkevich

Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Russian Federation n.s.ermashkevich@edu.nsuem.ru

### **ABSTRACT**

The paper studies the challenge of developing professional competencies in the digital economy. The changes in the labour market have been analysed, namely: workers do not meet the employers' requirements; the unemployment rate in the world is growing; employees consider changing their careers and professions; professional burnout is a widespread phenomenon. Trends in the extinction of professions and the emergence of new

ones are presented in the Atlas of New Professions by the SKOLKOVO Moscow School of Management and the RF Agency for Strategic Initiatives. The article reviews the existing tools and methods for the development of professional competencies. Five key players of the educational process are identified and described: the state, accredited educational institutions, private companies, formal and informal professional communities, and individuals. There are three types of programmes implemented through information technologies: distance learning, e-learning, and smart learning. A comparative analysis of information tools used by these programmes was made: interactive tools for developing professional competencies of common-interest communities or professional communities within a particular industry; software products integrated into the main systems in order to improve the quality of the educational process; world leaders in the field of distance learning; network business schools; banking educational products; a project for personnel training within the framework of the Digital Economy state-run project. A review of professional diagnostics that can be used for the development of professional competencies in the digital economy is made. The concept of a digital platform for the development of professional competencies is described.

**Keywords:** professional development, professional diagnostics, information tools in education, professional development tools, distance learning, e-learning, smart learning, digital platform for the development of professional competencies

# WHAT FACTORS AFFECT CUSTOMER SATISFACTION WITH POSTAL SERVICES?

### Peter Jucha

University of Zilina, Zilina, Slovakia peter.jucha@fpedas.uniza.sk

### Katarina Stalmachova

University of Zilina, Zilina, Slovakia katarina.stalmachova@fpedas.uniza.sk

### Maria Zilincikova

University of Zilina, Zilina, Slovakia maria.zilincikova@fpedas.uniza.sk

### Simona Jaculjakova

University of Zilina, Zilina, Slovakia simona.jaculjakova@fpedas.uniza.sk

### Tatiana Corejova

University of Zilina, Zilina, Slovakia tatiana.corejova@uniza.sk

### ABSTRACT

Nowday, it is characterized by the fact that customers require the provision of quality services by providers. Therefore, companies operating in the public or private sphere should constantly strive to maintain and improve the quality of their services and reflect on the needs and requirements of their customers. The national postal operator, which belongs to the services sector, should also follow this trend. Customer satisfaction with the services provided may be different for customers who use the services of the national postal operator in the city and for customers who use these services in the countryside. The aim of the paper is to compare the factors affecting the customers of the national postal operator in the Slovak Republic. The article used a multidimensional statistical method - factor analysis. Using

factor analysis, it is possible to classify the individual attributes of the services provided by the national postal operator according to the perception of customer satisfaction with the services provided. The input data used in the factor analysis were obtained through primary research, which was carried out in cooperation with the national postal operator - Slovenská pošta a.s. These attributes, which were analyzed in the factor analysis, are classified into factors. Subsequently, the results of the factor analysis are sorted according to the value of significance of individual attributes. The analysis carried out should serve as a basis and at the same time provide information for the national postal operator to identify the services to be focused on in terms of satisfaction. The results show that in the countryside. customers are most satisfied with the behavior of employees at the post office and in the city with the behavior of postal delivery people. In both cases, customers are the least satisfied with the waiting time in line at the post office.

**Keywords:** Factor analysis, National postal operator, Quality, Satisfaction

### EVOLUTION OF ECONOMIC INCENTIVES AND FUNCTIONAL CONSTRAINTS IN THE PROCESS OF COMPANY GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT

### Ilya Maximov

Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Russia ilya maksimow@mail.ru

### Olga Kovtun

Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Russia kovtuolga@yandex.ru

### Marina Ivanenko

Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Russia ivamarin@mail.ru

#### ABSTRACT

The article examines, through the Greiner-Kleiner model, the crisis transformation and the evolutionary process of the company development starting from small personalized companies to large multinational corporations. The relevance of this article is justified by the need to make decisions under the conditions of uncertainty and increasing risks, competition between companies during the crisis in the world economy in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic. The given model inevitably simplifies the object being modeled, since the development of the company is expressed through changes in its essence over time. In this article, the company essence is understood as its organizational and legal structure as one of the main economic agents. At the same time, this model reflects changes in the company economic interests and transaction costs at different stages of its development and under the influence of market conditions. It determines and interprets a set of economic

incentives and functional restrictions for the development of companies, and analyzes the structure of external and internal relations depending on the stage of the company evolution. The model used for the analysis also provides an opportunity to assess the development of the company under the conditions of alternating economic growth and recession and its adaptation to changing market conditions. In particular, it can identify the main patterns of evolution of the company internal structure and intracompany relations, as well as assess its growing influence on the external and market environment. In addition, the article attempts to answer the question of how to determine the stage of the company development under the conditions of a systemic crisis and functional limitations, and suggest options for the transition to the next stage.

**Keywords:** transnational corporation, economic development model, economic incentives, transaction costs, company evolution

# PATH OF A READING PROJECT IN COLLABORATIVE WORK BETWEEN SCHOOL AND FAMILY

### Maria Nazare Coimbra

Universidade Lusófona do Porto (CeiED), Portugal nazarecoimbra@gmail.com

### Alcina Manuela de Oliveira Martins

Universidade Lusófona do Porto (CeiED), Portugal amom@ulp.pt

### Ligia Vilarica

Universidade Lusófona do Porto, Portugal ligiavilarica@sapo.pt

### Jose Antonio Oliveira

Politécnico do Porto, Escola Superior de Tecnologia e Gestão, (CIICESI), Portugal jao@estg.ipp.pt

### ABSTRACT

Globally, the acquisition and development of reading skills is at the top of the priorities of educational policies, as a means of communication and access to knowledge and social inclusion. In Portugal, the transversal nature of the domain of reading runs through curricular programs, as the basis of scientific, technical and technological knowledge. Thus, the general objective of this study is to analyse the results of the implementation of a multidisciplinary reading project, involving collaborative work between school and family, in improving the reading competence of students in the 1st Cycle of Basic Education. This is a case study, with a predominantly qualitative approach, carried out in a public school in the district of Porto, in which 25 students, 25 parents / guardians and 2 teachers participated, in a total of 52 participants. The data collection tools include records of the Project's collaborative journey, according to the National

Reading Plan, student reading registration grids, teachers' reports and a questionnaire survey of parents/guardians. The results allow us to conclude that the completion of the Project reinforced the improvement of reading skills, in terms of fluency and reading comprehension of the participating students and the involvement of parents, with the addition of reading activities in a family environment. In general, there was a consolidation of reading habits of students and their families and more frequency in the school library. However, despite the very positive appreciation of the Project by the participants, it is necessary to bear in mind that the construction of a proficient reader is not punctual, but implies a process throughout life, so it is necessary to insist on motivating and innovative activities that promote reading in collaborative school-family work.

**Keywords:** 1st Cycle of Basic Education, Pluridisciplinary project, Reading competence, School and Family

\*\*\*\*\*

# ON THE USE OF NEURAL NETWORKS FOR STOCK PRICE FORECASTING

### Virginia Sousa

Universidade Lusófona do Porto, Portugal virginiamasousa@gmail.com

### **Hugo Alonso**

Universidade Lusófona do Porto, Universidade de Aveiro and CIDMA, Portugal hugo.alonso@ulp.pt

### **ABSTRACT**

Having the ability to predict the price of a particular stock share is undoubtedly a major challenge, because of the complexity and implied volatility of the financial markets. This is a topic of great interest to researchers and market players, as the effectiveness of

the forecast might translate into huge monetary gains. This work aims to demonstrate the use of neural networks for stock price forecasting. Two financial titles are considered: Microsoft and Apple. The initial choice of the predictor variables comprises the most used and referenced in the scientific papers published on this subject. This work demonstrates the importance of a careful selection of some of those variables for a good neural network performance.

**Keywords:** Financial markets, neural networks, stock share, variable selection

\*\*\*\*\*

# MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS AND ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE: USERS' PERCEPTION OF HEALTHCARE UNITS

### Catarina Santos Ferreira

ESTG, Polytechnic Institute of Leiria, Portugal 2182732@my.ipleiria.pt

### Sandra Raquel Alves

CEOS.PP; ESTG, Polytechnic Institute of Leiria, Portugal raquel.alves@ipleiria.pt

### **Humberto Ribeiro**

GOVCOPP; ESTGA, University of Aveiro, Portugal hnr@ua.pt

### **ABSTRACT**

Performance evaluation systems are a powerful human resource management tool, with an impact on organizational life. Its correct use can contribute to effectiveness and efficiency, as well as the introduction of changes in work methodologies, which must be periodically scrutinized. As people are the main asset of companies, their correct management/monitoring will necessarily have an impact, not only on individual performance, but also on a more general logic, involving all sectors of organizations. If the internal evaluation is vital, the perception that external customers have of performance is also important. This study aims to understand what users think about the quality of public and private health services, in the centre region of Portugal. Being the 360-degree evaluation a source of effective performance assessment, with the consultation of multiple actors who participate in the process, the users' opinion is an element of the greatest importance in the management of health services, in the perspective of continuous improvement. Using the Healthqual methodology and factor and regression analysis, significant associations were found between the service quality dimensions and patient satisfaction, being discussed in this paper such implications and future research issues.

**Keywords:** Management, human capital, user perception, healthcare services, SERVOUAL, HEALTHOUAL

### CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT AS A TOOL FOR PREVENTION TO ORIGIN OF CRISIS SITUATIONS AND INCREASING THE RESILIENCE OF THE ENTERPRISE

### Katarina Buganova

University of Zilina in Zilina, Faculty of Security Engineering, Slovakia katarina.buganova@ fbi.uniza.sk

### Katarina Holla

University of Zilina in Zilina, Faculty of Security Engineering, Slovakia katarina.holla@fbi.uniza.sk

### Erika Moskova

University of Zilina in Zilina, Faculty of Security Engineering, Slovakia erika.moskova@fbi.uniza.sk

### **ABSTRACT**

The current state of the world's social and business environment is affected by the occurrence of the COVID 19 pandemic. Negative influences of the pandemic on countries business activity like a whole constantly persist and interruption of operation is one of the worst impacts, which enterprises to fight. Because interruption of business triggers the next of negative domino effects with the impact not only on the business environment and interested party's, but also on the community and regions and social environment. Business activities influence a lot of factors from the external and internal environment. On the one of the side is needed, to enterprises flexible react on the influences and changes of environments, on the two of the side are must-try about constantly improving their processes, to satisfy the requirements of customers, which gradually changes

too. The combination of the introduction of risk management, process management, and continuity management to business management, possible to harmonized business activities so, to reach good results, increased resilience, and sustainable growth. Every one of the revealed causes of the failures and errors of business processes is helpful to improvement to processes. However, not every enterprise and his management know harmonize all approaches to activities. The purpose of this article is to refer to the possibility to use the risk management and continuity management as a tool the avoid interruption of operation and increasing of the resilience of the enterprise.

**Keywords:** Risk, Risk management, Continuity management, Enterprice, Resilience

\*\*\*\*\*

### INCREASING RESILIENCE OF ENERGY SECTOR TO ADVERSE EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE

### Maria Luskova

University of Zilina Univerzitna 8215/1, 010 26 Zilina, Slovakia maria.luskova@fbi.uniza.sk

### Eva Sventekova

University of Zilina Univerzitna 8215/1, 010 26 Zilina, Slovakia eva.sventekova@fbi.uniza.sk

### **ABSTRACT**

At present, the energy sector is one of the basic pillars for the safe and reliable operation of any infrastructure and thus meeting the needs of the population. At the same time the energy sector faces many serious threats of a natural and social nature. The paper is dealing with the issue of vulnerability of human society to power supply failure caused by extreme weather events. It points to the negative consequences of climate change for the energy supply and the resulting risks in the energy value chain. Then it describes the elements of the resilience of the energy value chain and provides options of adaptation measures in the energy sector aimed at mitigating the adverse effects of climate change, reducing society's vulnerability and increasing the adaptive capacity of the energy sector to current or expected negative effects of climate change.

**Keywords:** Energy, Climate Change, Resilience, Society, Vulnerability

\*\*\*\*\*

### HUMAN ERRORS AS A SOURCE OF PERSONNEL RISK IN THE ENTERPRISE ENVIRONMENT

### Maria Hudakova

University of Zilina, Faculty of security engineering, Slovakia maria.hudakova@fbi.uniza.sk

### Patrik Lahuta

University of Zilina, Faculty of security engineering, Slovakia patrik.lahuta@fbi.uniza.sk

### **ABSTRACT**

At present, the human factor must be the focus of every business. The human factor brings a considerable degree of unpredictability and uncertainty to the performance of any activity in the enterprise, which can also cause a crisis situation. The aim of the paper is to evaluate the importance of the human factor in the company based on the results of our own research. Analyze human errors in the enterprise environment and propose a strategy for personnel risk management as a preventive measure to reduce or. elimination. Process the results of the

paper on the basis of scientific methods and selected mathematical and statistical methods. The main results of the paper show that most enterprises are aware of human errors and the associated personnel risks, but do not consider them to be the most serious. They are mainly aware of the mistakes of employees, but they do not pay enough attention to the mistakes of managers. Insufficient qualification of employees is considered to be the main cause of the human error of employees. The processed results are to convince business owners and managers that investing in human capital brings added value and prevents crises in the enterprise.

**Keywords:** Human errors, Personnel risk, Risk management, Enterprise

# REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF PORTUGAL: WHICH ARE THE REGIONS OF PORTUGAL WITH THE HIGHEST LEVEL OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND WHAT IS THE INFLUENCE OF SOCIAL AND DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS IN THIS DEVELOPMENT?

### Catia Rosario

Centro de Pesquisa e Estudos Sociais, Escola de Ciências Económicas e das Organizações, Universidade Lusófona de Humanidades e Tecnologias,

Campo Grande 376, 1749-024 Lisboa, Portugal Governance, Competitiveness and Public Policies (GOVCOPP), Universidade de Aveiro, Campus Universitário de Santiago, 3810-193 Aveiro, Portugal rosario.catia@hotmail.com

### Ana Lorga da Silva

Centro de Pesquisa e Estudos Sociais, Escola de Ciências Económicas e das Organizações and Faculdade de Ciências Sociais, Educação e Administração, Universidade Lusófona de Humanidades e Tecnologias, Campo Grande 376, 1749-024 Lisboa, Portugal ana.lorga@ulusofona.pt

### Antonio Augusto Costa

Escola de Ciências Económicas e das Organizações, Universidade Lusófona de Humanidades e Tecnologias, Campo Grande 376, 1749-024 Lisboa, Portugal aaugusto@ulusofona.pt

### ABSTRACT

The interest about the development of the interior regions of the countries is increasing and is being supported by the European Union through financing, among others. Portugal, with its accession to the European Economic Community on January 1<sup>st</sup>

of 1986, started to benefit from financial aid provided by the European Structural Funds. Over the years, investments have been made and measures have been created to promote competitiveness and development with the intention of reducing the economic and social disparities that exist between the regions of Portugal. The level of economic development in the regions influences and is influenced by the sociodemographic characteristics of the population, as well as by several other factors. These factors are simultaneously the cause and effect of the economic results of the regions. In this study we compared the regions of Portugal (NUTS II) through a wide range of factors: Population (e.g. aging, birth, migration); Education (e.g. education, number of schools, number of graduates); Health (e.g. number of health centres and hospitals); Social Protection (e.g. unemployment and social benefits); Living conditions (e.g. income and purchasing power); Security (e.g. level of crime); (e.g. active **Employment** population, unemployed, entrepreneurial initiative); Technological development (e.g. access to ICT, investment in R&D); Environment (e.g. environmental protection); Culture (e.g. number of cultural activities); Local Finance (e.g. revenues and indebtedness); Tourism (e.g. number of tourist accommodations, revenue from tourism) and Agricultural and fishing activity (e.g. monthly workers' remuneration). The aim of our study is to compare the regions of Portugal, in relation to the factors described, trying to understand to what extent the characteristics of the population and the economic and social conditions developed promote the development of the other factors. To this end, we prepared a database at the regional level, with data collected from the PORDATA database (Portugal Contemporary Database).

**Keywords:** Demographic, economic and social factors, NUTS II, Portugal, Regional development

# THE GLOBALIZATION OF WOMEN'S PROTESTS: THE CASE OF THE WORLD MARCH OF WOMEN

### Celia Taborda Silva

Lusophone University of Porto, Portugal Rua Augusto Rosa, nº25, Porto, Portugal celia.taborda@ulp.pt

### **ABSTRACT**

The changes that globalization has brought to the world have given visibility to women's collective action. Women have always been actors in history, although they were ignored as a source of study practically until the 20th century. As historical "subjects" they promoted or participated in riots, revolts, demonstrations, marches and strikes over time, especially in the 19th and 20th centuries. Nowadays, they continue to manifest themselves and in the same way, as the alter-globalization movement World March of Women reveals, and despite the rights they have been achieving with globalization projection, they still lack recognition that goes beyond justice as stated by Nancy Fraser (2002). Through the use of a qualitative methodology, using news from newspapers, and a theoretical and conceptual framework derived from the theories of social movements, this study aims to analyze whether global protests have only brought visibility or effective achievements for women. The findings of this study suggest that even in the 21st century it is still necessary to use past methods such as marches on the streets to have greater visibility in the media and thus draw attention to the need for recognition of all women in the world.

Keywords: globalization, history, women, protests

# IMPACT INVESTMENT AS A FORMULA FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT IN BHUTAN

### Luis Barbosa

CICANT, Universidade Lusófona do Porto, Portugal luisbarbosa33@gmail.com

### **ABSTRACT**

A mature society should have its focus on humanism, work towards the well-being of each individual, protect the environment and build peace. Industrial and technological developments, the pressure of classic economic growth (that is, based essentially on numerical indices, such as GDP), have contributed decisively to a series of serious problems at global level. Despite the many advantages, the almost exclusive profit orientated goal has created serious social and environmental problems worldwide. Thus, economic reasons continue to lead the majority of global political decisions. In contrast, in recent years, new visions on the economy have emerged and have been tested by experts inside and outside the academic world with the aim of maximizing the quality of life and well-being of citizens as well as preserving the environment. Some concepts have been created with the aim of giving relevance to the social side of the economy, changing the capitalist paradigm and directing the investment to assets that generate financial results, but above all have a positive (social) impact - being this the basic feature of the impact economy. In this paper we're reflecting on the impact economy and the impact investment. We're also reflecting on the advantages of applying this concept to Bhutan's economy; a pioneering country in the application of policies and strategies oriented towards environmental sustainability and social wellbeing.

**Keywords:** Buthan, Impact Economy, Nature, Social Economy, Sustainable Development

# MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AS POWER DEVICES IN HIGHER EDUCATION

### Claudia Maria Huber

Lusófona University of Porto, Portugal p6056@ulp.pt

### **ABSTRACT**

This article addresses neoliberalism within the scope of the quality agenda in higher education, specifically in aspects related to the work of professors. The research question that guided the investigation was: Does neoliberalism employ techniques of power over the conduct and subjectivity of individuals? The methodology employed here was the theoretical-bibliographic study, resulting in a qualitative approach. The analysis began from the perspective of Michel Foucault on disciplinary power, within the scope of higher education policies in Brazil, placing them in a neoliberal context. The conclusions indicated that Brazilian Higher Education Institutions followed the logic of market competition, in which the market is conceived as a process of self-formation of the economic subject, a subjective selfdisciplining process through which the individual learns how to lead. Circumstances that impacted the professors' work, guided by management practices that act as power devices, are reflected in the conduct, or rather in the standardization thereof, and consequently in subjectivity. In this scenario occurs the intensification of controls, suffering at work and personality corrosion as examples of effects that make up the set of diagnoses that can be observed in the academic environment. The professor, or the new subject (neo-subject), the man produced by competition and performance, is faced with the effects of practices that emerge from neoliberalism. Thus, neoliberalism is not restricted only to the economic sphere, but crosses and involves all dimensions of human life.

**Keywords:** Appraisal, Brazil, Higher Education Institution, Quality

### DETERMINATION OF THE LEVEL OF RESILIENCE OF A CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT - CASE STUDY

### Eva Sventekova

Faculty of Security Engineering, University of Zilina, 1.maja 32, 010 26 Žlina, Slovakia eva.sventekova@fbi.uniza.sk

### Maria Luskova

Faculty of Security Engineering, University of Zilina, 1.maja 32, 010 26 Žlina, Slovakia maria.luskova@fbi.uniza.sk

### Michal Hulka

Faculty of Security Engineering, University of Zilina, 1.maja 32, 010 26 Žlina, Slovakia hulka.michal@gmail.com

### **ABSTRACT**

To ensure the functionality of strategic elements of infrastructure (transport, energy, ICT, etc.) it is necessary to know the risks that could negatively affect the operability of the element and know the level of its resilience. In the article, the authors describe a new methodology for assessing the resilience of critical infrastructure elements, which they have developed to support decision-making for security managers of critical infrastructure entities and which can also be applied in their training. The methodology has a defined algorithm and basic components of evaluation as a basis for identifying variable indicators usable for estimating the level of resilience of a selected element of critical infrastructure. It can be used in the fields of energy, transport, water management, communication and information systems. The method of evaluation and some calculations can be applied with some adjustments in other industries, e.g. assessment of the resilience of elements of the emergency services and healthcare sector. The paper will present a case study with

the implementation of the methodology for the element of heating infrastructure. The determination of the level of resilience of the element is conditioned by finding out the current state of security systems and equipment that ensure the functionality of the selected element of the heating industry. Based on the evaluation of all input data, the paper will quantify the current level of resilience of the assessed element of the heating infrastructure. **Keywords**: Resilience, heating element, treats, risk, robustness, recoverability, adaptability

\*\*\*\*\*

# PERCEPTION OF HUMAN RESOURCES ON THE SKILLS REQUIRED IN THE FOUR AND FIVE STAR HOTELS IN THE HISTORIC CENTRE OF PORTO

#### Carla Magalhaes

Universidade Lusófona (Lusófona University), Portugal carla.magalhaes@ulp.pt

### **Isabel Andres Marques**

Universidade Lusófona (Lusófona University), Portugal isabel.marques@ulp.pt

#### **ABSTRACT**

The current situation poses a strong challenge for the Hospitality sector, which has been in very low demand when compared to the performance observed in recent years across the country and in the city of Porto, in particular. Four and five star hotels have increased exponentially in the city, in recent years, contributing to the creation of direct and indirect jobs. The strong expansion of the Hospitality sector places under analysis the importance of the qualification of Human Resources and the need for continuous training to face the demands of the market. The Covid-19 Pandemic, which emerged in January 2020 and forced the

closure of hotels in March, brought a new reality to the sector, but also evidenced the need for more skills by Human Resources, to face the market turbulence and the resilience necessary for its "revival". Thus, the objective of this exploratory study is to analyze the perception that Human Resources of four and five star hotels in the Historic Centre of Porto have with regard to their performance, skills and working conditions. The study was carried out during the months of April and May 2020 and the main conclusions tell us that the respondents feel that they need to improve some skills, namely the digital, linguistic and communication skills, since a large part of them never attended any type of training through the employer, having acquired new skills on his own initiative, namely through professional experience. Despite seeing their performance evaluated and claiming that they have a good work environment, several respondents have reservations about career progression, salary conditions and contractual regime, which indicates that the Hospitality sector should review some of its Management practices of Human Resources, in order to give better conditions to its staff and to invest in the enhancement of its skills.

Keywords: Hospitality sector, Human Resources, skills

# A PHENOMENON OF DIALOGISM BETWEEN THE WESTERN AND THE ORIENTAL SCIENCE

#### Irina Rodicheva

Associate Professor, Department of Philosophy and Humanities, Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Novosibirsk, Russia iriy.rodicheva@yandex.ru

#### Natalya Sukhanova

Associate Professor, Department of Philosophy and Humanities, Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Novosibirsk, Russia konfngi@yandex.ru

#### **ABSTRACT**

This article considers an issue of relations between interior and exterior factors, responsible for the development of science. Interior factors here stand for cognitive ones and exterior means social ones. The article also contrasts the Western scientific paradigm with the Oriental one. The former pores on the material world, the latter focuses on the aligning of the individual cognitive effort with the semiotic values of cultural environ. The article points out a hindrance to technological progress within the Oriental epistemology. This hindrance is named as the reason for the domination of the Western paradigm in the modern world. The article outlines the concept of dialog-based nature of the modern science. The paper also points out a number of key features of post-non-classic science, such as its dialog nature, embodied by plurality of approaches towards the choice of the studies' objects. Propositional strategy of studying science i.e. a classical, logic-based epistemology and a social and cultural approach are incompatible. Each of them draws its own image of science, introduces its own means and divides the scientific field into different subsections. Epistemology of the future has to find a way to merge those strategies together.

It is also pointed out, that in parallel to constructive dialogism, a dogmatic monologism could be replaced with relativistic pluralism, also present within the current discourse.

**Keywords:** science, philosophy of science, values, oriental culture, dialogism

\*\*\*\*\*

# BENEFITS AND RISKS OF JOINING EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AND MONETARY UNION: CROATIAN PERSPECTIVE

#### Vlatka Bilas

Faculty of Economics and Business, University of Zagreb, Croatia bilas.vlatka@gmail.com

#### Josip Kalajzic

Faculty of Economics and Business, University of Zagreb, Croatia ikalaizic@net.efzg.hr

#### **ABSTRACT**

Economic and monetary unions have become a crucial part of the global economy through the last several decades. There is now some form of an economic or monetary union appearing on every continent. Majority of world trade needs to abide by bilateral trade agreements established either between two economic and monetary unions or between an individual country and an economic and monetary union. The paper deals with effects of joining the European Economy and Monetary Union (EMU), a topic that is often a matter of public debate, especially in potential member states like Croatia. In Croatia the public has been divided on the issues since Croatia applied to join the European Union, the divide in Croatia has been more in favour towards the negative consequences since 2014. However recently, the public

opinion is starting to shift towards a more positive outcome as Croatia is preparing to enter the EMU. The decision to join a monetary union, specifically the EMU is not an easy and straightforward one. And such is the case for Croatia as well, the issue is complex with many benefits and risks facing Croatia in its path of accession into the EMU. Theory of optimum currency areas, as well as EMU criteria are analysed on the case of Croatia, as an important guidance to convergence and a successful integration into the EMU. A decision whether a country should join an economic and monetary union is a complex one, with each country facing a different set of benefits and risks.

**Keywords:** benefits, risks, European Economic and Monetary Union, Croatia

\*\*\*\*\*

# SITUATIONAL PRICING: THE ROLE OF WINE CONSUMPTION OCCASION ON PRICE DECISION

#### Teresa Candeias

Universidade Lusófona, Portugal teresa.candeias@ulp.pt

#### **Hugo Alonso**

Universidade Lusófona, Universidade de Aveiro and CIDMA, Portugal hugo.alonso@ulp.pt

#### ABSTRACT

Wine companies are usually operating in larger and diverse markets and consumers show different needs. Given resource constraints, companies must segment the market, because they cannot cover the entire market or, if they do, they need to adopt and implement an appropriate marketing strategy. Market

segmentation enables to treat consumers differently through a marketing strategy geared to this purpose. There are several segmentation criteria and one of them is the wine consumption occasion. Here, like other authors do, we consider the following five situations where the consumer pays for a bottle of wine: to drink at home, to drink at home with friends, to drink at a restaurant, to give as a gift and in businesses. We asked to 133 consumers, randomly selected, how much they were willing to pay in each situation: < 1 Euro; 1 - 2 Euros; 2 - 5 Euros; 5 - 10Euros: 10 - 20 Euros: > 20 Euros. We concluded that the price decision depends on the wine consumption occasion (Friedman test, p-value=0,000). This is in accordance with the literature. Furthermore, we found something that, to our knowledge, is new: at a 5% level of significance, there is no difference between the situations "to drink at home" and "to drink at home with friends" and also between "to drink at a restaurant", "to give as a gift" and "in businesses"; the difference lies between the former two situations and the latter three. This means that, for market segmentation, we can consider two instead of five wine consumption occasions. We further investigate how this conclusion depends on consumer gender.

**Keywords:** Consumption situation, market segmentation, price, wine

## CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK OF TERMS CONCERNING OVERSPENDING

#### **Timea Vastag**

Széchenyi István University, Hungary vastag.timea@sze.hu

#### Boglarka Eisingerne Balassa

Széchenyi István University, Hungary eisingerne@sze.hu

#### **ABSTRACT**

Most people seek potential situations to satisfy their desires by spending money. What happens if the buying behavior turns into an uncontrollable action and produces financial problems to the individuum? Current literature distinguishes between the primary and secondary types of compulsive buying behavior. This paper doesn't focus on the explanation of the psychiatric approach but the secondary type, the temporary propensity is in the center of the subject of interest. A better understanding of narratives beyond compulsive buying may help to identify this episodically changing behavior's background mechanism. This study aims to develop an understanding of overspending by diving deep in academic literature. Besides introducing Kahneman, Thaler, and Pinker's central concepts, combining different keywords (overspending, buying behavior, compulsive buying, family budget) might shed light on the involved disciplines by identifying the top journals and articles on the individual and social level. This study presents a conceptual framework that introduces the interpretation of chosen keywords in different fields and reveals the topic's transdisciplinary nature.

**Keywords:** overspending, compulsive buying behavior, behavioral economics, transdisciplinarity

# CURRICULAR ARTICULATION IN ENGLISH TEACHING BETWEEN THE 1ST AND 2ND BASIC EDUCATION CYCLES: PERCEPTIONS OF TEACHERS

#### Carla Alves

Lusophone University of Porto, Portugal carla.dimitri@gmail.com

#### **Paula Cristina Neves**

Lusophone University of Porto, Portugal pcrneves70@gmail.com

#### **ABSTRACT**

The educational sequentiality and students' success depend on the curricular articulation between cycles, as this reveals itself as relevant and facilitating in educational transitions. However, in practice, what the normative documents recommend are not applied. In this sense, the general objective of this study is to analyse the perceptions of English teachers in the 1st and 2nd Cycles of Basic Education (CEB) regarding the process of curricular articulation as a promoter of professional development In this case study, the qualitative methodology was chosen, employing structured interviews. The WebQDA software was used for data processing and for its descriptive and interpretative analysis. It was concluded that the English teachers of the 1st and 2nd CEB, despite admitting little knowledge of the normative documents, demonstrated legal to articulation, as far as the accomplishment of common activities is concerned and listed constraints. Interviewees recognized the advantages and the need for curricular articulation in the transition to promote students' educational success.

**Keywords:** Articulation, Curriculum, English, Educational Success, Transition

## SCHOOL MEDIATION OFFICES: PORTUGUESE EXPERIENCE

#### Elisabete Pinto da Costa

Universidade Lusófona do Porto/CieED, Portugal elisabete.pinto.costa@ulp.pt

#### Rejane Aparecida de Carvalho

Universidade Lusófona do Porto, Portugal carvalhorejane002@gmail.com

#### **ABSTRACT**

The problems of coexistence in the school environment influence interactions inside and outside the classroom, generating harmful social climates for the teaching and learning and socialization processes. The need to provide an educational response to this problem led several schools to adopt Conflict Mediation Offices (CMOs). These pacification structures have contributed to obtain positive results in conflict management and in improving the school social climate. The present investigation assumed the purpose of mapping and characterizing the CMOs of the second largest city in Portugal, Porto. As specific objectives, the aim was to know the needs and factors that contributed to the existence of CMOs at school; to perceive how CMOs are structured; analyse the dynamics of CMOs in the socio-educational context, focusing on the results and on the impact achieved; understand the integration of CMOs into the organic-educational structure of schools. Of the 15 Schools Clusters (SC) in the city (comprising a total of 73 schools, of which 69 are primary schools and 4 are secondary schools), 6 confirmed having CMO, although only 5 collaborated in the study (comprising a total of 22 schools, of which 21 are primary schools and 1 is a secondary school). Methodologically, it is a qualitative study, using questionnaires for data collection, whose data were subjected to techniques of descriptive statistical analysis and analysis of content. It was concluded that the CMOs, not being identical among the SC, are considered an indispensable socio-educational structure for

managing conflict situations and, despite facing organizational difficulties, they have the support of the school Management as they are a structure that performs good practices and obtain relevant results in social and educational terms.

**Keywords:** Conflict Mediation Office, Good Practices, School Mediation

\*\*\*\*\*

# INFLUENCE OF ACTIVE COMMUNICATION ON CRISIS MANAGEMENT

#### Tina Kezman

Međimursko veleučilište u Čakovcu, Croatia tina.lukcic@mev.hr

#### Ana Globocnik Zunac

Sveučilište Sjever, Croatia agzunac@unin.hr

#### **Igor Klopotan**

Međimursko veleučilište u Čakovcu, Croatia igor.klopotan@mev.hr

#### **ABSTRACT**

Paper analysis the impact of media activity on the public perception of a business organization in a crisis situation. The starting point is the importance of crisis communication by which a business organization can change the direction of resolving the crisis and influence the recovery time and return to the state of regular business functioning according to the goals arising from the business strategy. The crisis communication management model affects the reputation of the organization no matter what it was like before the adverse circumstances and leads to the damage associated with the loss of trust of key stakeholders. The aim of this paper was to determine the importance of active action

in the field of crisis communication in business organizations. A case study was conducted and the communication activities of three organizations were cited as examples of good practice and three as examples of negative and ineffective organisational communication. The analysis determined the readiness of the organization and how the planned crisis communication was reflected on the public through the media. Data were collected by secondary research of existing sources, and in this paper they are analyzed and discussed. The hypothesis that read 'More active communication with the public in times of crisis can have a positive effect on the perception of the organization by the public' was confirmed.

**Keywords:** Public opinion, crisis situation, crisis management, crisis communication, crisis communication management

\*\*\*\*\*

# KNOWLEDGE SHARING AND KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER IN BUSINESS NETWORKS

### Alina Czapla

University of Economics in Katowice, Poland alina.czapla@edu.uekat.pl

#### **ABSTRACT**

Both knowledge management and networking are currently in the center of attention. Although many studies are focused on knowledge sharing (KS) and knowledge transfer (KT), they usually describe these processes inside an enterprise. However, at a time when business networks seem to be the only solution to the problems of globalization and growing competition, interorganizational KS and KT are especially important. The flow of knowledge between business partners should be the subject of research, because it can contribute not only to the development of science, but also to the practical applications of KS and KT in management. The critical literature review was carried out. It

was found that knowledge sharing and knowledge transfer are often a subject of research as a main part of knowledge management, however in the context of networking they are studied relatively rarely. Fragmentation of empirical knowledge indicates the need for thorough research in this topic. Definitions inconsistency was identified as the main reason for a small amount of research and as a significant barrier to the development of research in this area. The terms KS and KT are sometimes used synonyms, sometimes they are taken as similar processes, and sometimes they are strongly distinguished.

As a consequence, research results are inconsistent. It was proposed to use the term knowledge flow (KF), which includes both knowledge sharing and knowledge transfer. Such a more general view may allow to gather the current research results into a coherent whole, despite the differences in definitions. However, by generalization some of the details can be omitted.

**Keywords:** Business networks, Knowledge flow, Knowledge management, Knowledge sharing, Knowledge transfer

# USER ORIENTATION AS A RESOURCE TO CREATE AN EFFECIENT SCORECARD

#### Maria Krasnova

Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Russia mary1381@mail.ru

#### Vera Ostapova

Novosibirsk State University of Economics and Management, Russia mary1381@mail.ru

#### **ABSTRACT**

Under fierce competition organizations need to shape a highquality system of indicators which adequately characterize their activities. It's crucial to create a set of indicators clearly characterizing the state of affairs of the company, and a logical assessment system that can help interested users. The approaches to developing indicator systems which characterize the activities of an organization are driven by the influence of many factors. The bias towards the internal users interests and the emphasis on financial information have become outdated. The article demonstrates various approaches to creating an indicator system, identifies their capabilities and limitations in use. The article focuses attention on the consequences of choosing irrelevant indicators that limit the stakeholders' awareness. The indicators analysis of financial and nonfinancial statements in terms of external and internal users interests enabled us to identify problems and challenges for the approaches development to create efficient indicator systems.

**Keywords:** Indicator system, Financial indicators, Nonfinancial information, Stakeholder

# ADOPTING BEST PRACTICES TO IMPROVE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE MANAGEMENT

#### Melita Kozina

Faculty of Organization and Informatics, Croatia melita.kozina@foi.hr

#### Danijela Dusper

Faculty of Organization and Informatics, Croatia dandusper@foi.hr

#### **ABSTRACT**

The companies invest large resources in the application of digital technologies for business improvement and greater competition. A new digital economy is developing dominantly based on the information and service sector and their influence on the GDP. Managing the customer experience becomes a new challenge for businesses. The purpose of the paper is to evaluate how companies adopt best practices for the customer experience management in order to accomplish the better business results such as desired customer expectations, customer retention and acquisition, greater market competition.

**Keywords:** Digital Economy, Best Practices in Customer Experience Management, Impact of Customer Experience Management on Business Performance, Maturity of Customer Experience Management

# INCREASING THE RESILIENCE OF SMALL AND MEDIUM-SIZED ENTERPRISES WITH THE APPLICATION OF PROJECT MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES WITH REGARD TO RISK MANAGEMENT

#### Katarina Buganova

Faculty of security engineering, University of Zilina, Slovakia katarina.buganova@fbi.uniza.sk

#### Jana Simickova

Faculty of security engineering, University of Zilina, Slovakia jana.simickova@fbi.uniza.sk

#### **ABSTRACT**

Risk management as an integral part of project management increases the possibility of achieving project goals and the overall success of projects and business. Project management in large enterprises is usually based on current standards, but in small and medium-sized enterprises it is often implemented only partially in the form of processing and realization of orders without a standardized approach. The same approach is taken to the issue of risk management in projects, whether they are innovative, development projects, implementing changes or new business plans. Business failure due to poor planning can be avoided, but it is necessary to develop an adequate business plan, respectively a feasibility study of planned changes, which are usually of a project nature and should therefore include an adequate risk assessment and risk management. Recent events have exacerbated the need to prevent crises due to the negative effects of internal or external factors in the business environment. The COVID 19 pandemic only emphasized the importance of risk management and critical processes in both projects and enterprises, because if a enterprise knows its risks and opportunities, it can also respond flexibly to unpredictable changes in the business environment and their consequences.

In general, enterprises that underestimate planning, they plan failure and especially if enterprises underestimate risk management, whether in optimization, restructuring, innovation or development activities. The aim of the article is to point out the importance of risk management in project management as a tool for increasing the resilience of business in small and medium-sized enterprises.

**Keywords:** Enterprise, Project management, Resilience, Risk management

\*\*\*\*\*

# THE ROLE OF ENFORCEMENT MECHANISMS ON IFRS IMPLEMENTATION: PERCEPTIONS FROM TAX OFFICIALS

#### Ana Paula Silva

CEOS.PP; ESCE, Polytechnic Institute of Viana do Castelo, Valença, Portugal apaulasilva@esce.ipvc.pt

#### **Alexandra Fontes**

REMIT; ESTG, Polytechnic Institute of Viana do Castelo, Viana do Castelo, Portugal afontes@estg.ipvc.pt

#### **Humberto Ribeiro**

GOVCOPP; ESTGA, University of Aveiro, Portugal hnr@ua.pt

#### **Sandra Raquel Alves**

CEOS.PP; ESTG, Polytechnic Institute of Leiria, Portugal raquel.alves@ipleiria.pt

#### **ABSTRACT**

The adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)-based accounting systems may not be enough to achieve global accounting harmonization. Prior studies shed light on the

critical role played by enforcement mechanisms while effectively contributing to a worldwide adoption of IFRS. Nevertheless, there is a dearth of research on this topic that could bring to light opportunities to improve the effective implementation of IFRSbased models. This paper intends to reduce the gap of the research on this topic in Portugal by drawing conclusions from the perceptions of tax officials. This paper is a piece of qualitative longitudinal research since interviews were performed in two different moments: before adoption of an IFRS-based system, in 2009; and after adoption, in 2017. The findings of this study raise awareness towards a possible enduring and ongoing resistance to the implementation of the IFRS-based principles in Portugal, as a result of poor enforcement. Accordingly, this research suggests the need for drawing strategies to achieve the success of the Portuguese accounting reform, by effectively ensuring the financial reporting standards implementation, which ultimately may require the adoption of enforcement mechanisms.

**Keywords:** Standards Enforcement, Longitudinal Research, International Financial Reporting Standards, Portugal, Perceptions, Tax officials

\*\*\*\*\*

# CLUSTER ORGANIZATION: WE DO NOT KNOW WHERE WE PLAY

#### Piroska Hoffmann

Széchenyi University, Hungary hoffmann.piroska@sze.hu

#### Zoltan Baracskai

Széchenyi University, Hungary baracskai.zoltan@sze.hu

#### **ABSTRACT**

The cluster organization was a newly emerging form of the association in the last decades of the twentieth century. Globalization, the high pressure on financial efficiency, cost

reduction, and the development of remote communication were the primary factors that encouraged the development of the clusters. Today this became a new normal of the interfirm, interorganizational collaboration. These factors accelerate the formation, and the cluster model has a dynamically increasing and expanded literature. Nevertheless, the cluster is not a homogenous form. A limited number of academic models evaluate the clusters' organization, and a comprehensive overview of the structural setup is not available. This literature review intends to deep dive into the previous XXX years' publications in order to collect, structure, and clarify the cluster operational models. Based on the systematic literature review, this paper developed a conceptual model integrated into three dimensions as Time frame, Territory, and Way of working, which together may describe the operational model of cluster organizations. The study offers a new taxonomy that may significantly impact the better understanding of the organizations' territory and helps scholars restructure their knowledge.

**Keywords:** cluster organization, virtual team, organizational strucute, collaboration

# RE-READING R.D. KAPLAN'S COMING ANARCHY: NEO-MALTHUSIANISM AND THE DEFENSIVE GEOPOLITICAL DISCOURSE IN THE ELECTION PROGRAMS OF THE AFD AND THE LEGA

#### **Petar Kurecic**

University North, Department of Economics, Varazdin, Croatia pkurecic@unin.hr

#### Lara Kauss

Fluminense Federal University, Department of Social Communication, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil lara.kauss@gmail.com

#### **ABSTRACT**

The main purpose of the paper is to find the "geopolitical" in the selected, European populist parties' political programs that we have analysed here, with a specific focus on Neo-Malthusianism and "invasion threat" scenarios, described in R. D. Kaplan's famous paper The Coming Anarchy: Shattering the Dreams of the Post-Cold War (1994). Indulged by the rising tide of right-wing populist parties in most European countries, which has especially been visible since the full scale of the migrant crisis that exploded in 2015, we decided to find the similarities between the excerpts of the programs that refer to the situation in Northern Africa and Central Africa (Sahel), and Kaplan's afore-mentioned paper, which has been mostly regarded as Neo-Malthusianist by its character and increasingly defensive by its posture, hence it introduces the birth rates of African countries and the projections about the population increase in the coming decades as a threat to the developed world and a fuel to the illegal, primarily towards Europe-oriented migration, combined with chaos, poverty and anarchy in the societies of the African Sahel, concomitantly combining these with the recommendation for the "defence" of the developed world against the rising tide of illegal migrants,

infectious diseases etc. To these dangers, from today's perspective, we could add radical Islamist terrorism, which has widely spread geographically and increased its intensity in the last two decades, and perfectly fits into "endangerment" scenarios, enabling a wide-spread geopolitical discourse and practice of securitization. A logical question also comes up: Did Kaplan's famous work inspire the rise of the modern right-with populism in Europe (and in the U.S.A., Brasil etc.) fuelled by Neo-Malthusianism which he advocates, and are the conditions in Africa and the Middle East to partially blame for that? We have analysed the Alternative for Germany (die Alternative für Deutschland – AfD) and the League (Lega, former Lega Nord) programs in the original respective languages, by using critical discourse analysis in order to find the exact citations that are Neo-Malthusianist by their character and/or defensive by posture, and compare these with the ones found in Kaplan's work. **Keywords:** Coming Anarchy, Neo-Malthusianism, defence, immigration, populism, Alternative für Deutschland (AfD), Lega

# MANAGERIAL CHALLENGES DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON THE EXAMPLE OF THE CROATIA AIRLINES GROUP

#### **Martina Sopta**

Faculty of Economics and Business, University of Zagreb, Croatia msopta@efzg.hr

#### Jure Mihalj

Faculty of Economics and Business, University of Zagreb, Croatia jmihalj@net.efzg.hr

#### **ABSTRACT**

Purpose of this paper is to present an analysis of the financial sustainability of operations and the challenges of managing Croatia Airlines d.d. and its affiliates in the observed time period with an emphasis on the analysis of the current crisis caused by the pandemic of a new strain of coronavirus. In the first part of the paper, a theoretical framework of managerial characteristics of modern business operations is set. After that, an analysis of the financial sustainability and operations of the Croatia Airlines Group in the observed period is made, with suggestions and alternative strategic management solutions for the company in the future. Croatia Airlines, as the national airline of the Republic of Croatia, represents an important aspect of the Croatian transport infrastructure from its establishment three decades ago until today. Due to poor business results, the company has already undergone a restructuring process with the aim of achieving business sustainability. However, the conclusion of financial analysis indicates significant financial difficulties of the company, which were further exacerbated by the current crisis. However, it should be noted that the current crisis is unprecedented in the history of the air transport industry. In this sense, the positive aspect is the strong interest of the owner, the Republic of Croatia, in supporting the company in the current

circumstances, as well as future directions of development. In addition to the urgent financial assistance package that should enable business continuity, efforts should be made to select the best recovery strategies and future alternative development that will enable long-term improvement of the competitive position and financial sustainability of the Group's operations.

**Keywords:** croatia airlines, managerial economics, crisis, restructuring, covid-19

\*\*\*\*\*

# THE IMPACT OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT ON THE SMES RESILIENCY, ADAPTABILITY & SUSTAINABILITY IN A CRISIS

#### Goran Kvrgic

Faculty of Management, Njegoševa 1a, 21205 Sremski Karlovci, University Union - Nikola Tesla, Belgrade, Serbia goran.kvrgic@famns.edu.rs

### Jovanka Popovic

Faculty of Management, Njegoseva 1a, 21205 Sremski Karlovci, University Union - Nikola Tesla, Belgrade, Serbia jovanka.popovic@famns.edu.rs

#### Goran Coric

Faculty of Business Economics, University Singidunum, Deligradska 26, 11000 Belgrade, Serbia gcoric@outlook.com

#### **ABSTRACT**

Global sourcing has increased as buyers searched for new markets that offered better quality, delivery lead times, pricing, variety and their local markets, what has also exposed businesses to many risks. The purpose of this descriptive qualitative study was to explore the attitudes of production and service companies

on risks encountered by them, and determine whether risk identification and management approaches sustain, improve or decrease their business performances. The sample makes 175 enterprises from Western Balkan countries stratified in two groups: production and services: 62 textile production firms, and other from related supply chain service sector: trade, fashion centers and high-tech ICT service. For the research were used semi-structured interviews conducted with owners and managers of the firms in 2019. The methods used in the research are Pearson's  $\chi^2$  (Chi-Square), statistical methods and the Multiple Discrimination Analysis (MDA) model. Key findings supported the hypothesis on the impact of the risk management in the business resilience of the SMEs in textile and its supply chains. their sustainability of the performances. It supports the existence of the relation between the levels of organizational resilience and business health helped by adequate risk management, proactive identification and management risks in order to reduce and mitigate potential disruptions.

**Keywords:** Resilience, Risk Management, Supply Chains, Textile, Western Balkans

## BALANCED SCORECARD – ANALYSIS OF THEORETICAL AND APPLIED SOLUTION

#### Venelin Terziev

Georgi Rakovski Military Academy, Sofia, Bulgaria University of Rousse, Rousse, Bulgaria Kaneff University Hospital, Rousse, Bulgaria Russian Academy of Natural History, Moscow, Russia terziev@skmat.com

#### **Marin Georgiev**

Kaneff University Hospital, Rousse, Bulgaria clementon@abv.bg

#### Olga Andreeva

Rostov State University of Economics, Rostov-on-Don, Russia olvandr@ya.ru

#### **ABSTRACT**

Balanced scorecard (BSC) is a practical tool helping organizations to implement their business strategy. Each perspective requires setting strategic goals, criteria and action plans. The continuous process of BSC development is focused on combining four and more perspectives. The balanced scorecard focuses the efforts of the reviewed organization on the critical the analysis of future and its binding with the meaning of the ideal.

**Keywords:** Balanced scorecard, Performance measurement, Strategic management, Control, Organization

# TOURIST SATISFACTION WITH THE QUALITY OF HOTEL SERVICES: THE CASE STUDY OF THE FAMILY HOTEL ON THE MAKARSKA RIVIERA

#### Marija Jurcevic

University of Zagreb,
Faculty of Economics and Business, Croatia
mjurcevic@efzg.hr

#### Ivana Divic

Q Ltd., Croatia ivana.divic1@gmail.com

#### **ABSTRACT**

Many business subjects within the hospitality industry face unexpected, dynamic and deep changes on the international market on daily basis. Tourists expect full service and good quality for reasonable price. In order to survive, hotels today have to invest in service updating to meet the demands and expectations of the final customers. Providing good service is one of the challenges hotel management will face in the upcoming period and also one of the most important preconditions for achieving competitive advantage on the global market. Therefore, the quality of the service, together with its careful monitoring, will enable hotels to create a differentiated tourist product and generate positive economic effects and loyalty from their customers, and ensure a long-term and stable business. With the aim of improving the quality of hotel services and the satisfaction of the final consumer, the owners and managers face some difficulties in choosing the methods and ways of evaluating them. The main reason for that is because they are not familiar with the manner guests evaluate something as having good quality and because they lack suitable instruments for assessing the expectations and perception of the hotel guests. If there is a discrepancy in the point of view between demand and supply, there is a chance of a gap being created in the service quality.

This paper places the focus on the SERVQUAL Model as the most frequently used model and a referential framework for measuring the quality of hotel services. It was used for the purpose of the primary research on tourist satisfaction with the hotel services provided at Hotel Ivando in Drvenik. The users of the accommodation and the half-board service at Hotel Ivando expressed their satisfaction with the services, i.e., the average grade of the service perception was better than general expectations the hotel guests had. These results imply good allocation of human and financial resources made by both the owner and the hotel manager.

Keywords: service quality, SERVQUAL model, tourism, hotel

\*\*\*\*\*

#### THE SCALE OF INTERNAL FUNDING

#### Martina Sopta

Faculty of Economics and Business, University of Zagreb, Croatia msopta@efzg.hr

#### **ABSTRACT**

Internal financing refers to internally generated capital within a corporation. The most impressive source of internal capital is certainly the realized profit of the corporation, although depreciation should not be neglected either. The simplicity of the answer, however, overshadows, and even hides, the long and burdensome path to making a profit. In fact, profit is a feature that connects the internal financing of joint stock companies with banks, because for them, too, profitability is a determinant of the credit rating of individual joint stock companies. Thus, the scale of internal financing implies how much this form of financing of joint stock companies is theoretically respected by eminent experts and how much it is empirically accepted in practice. Regarding Croatian and world practice on internal financing, it

will be presented in more detail in the following chapters. What is important is that scientific experts of Croatian and world rank such as Donaldson, Brealey, Myers, Marcus, Foley, Corbettica, Jenkinson, Orsag, Burke, DeMarz, Donaldson, Santini, etc. have registered internal funding, and in further scientific analyzes such as this is an attempt to attach more importance to this form of corporate financing.

**Keywords:** corporations, internal financing, USA, Japan, Canada, EU















